
ENVIRONMENT COMMITTEE

AGENDA

Date: Tuesday, 3rd March, 2020

Time: 7.00 pm

Venue: Guildhall



2

ENVIRONMENT COMMITTEE 
Information for Members of the Public

Access to the Guildhall is via the front entrance in the High Street.  The nearest car park is 
Copenhagen Street (pay and display). If you are a wheelchair user or have restricted mobility, access 
to the Guildhall can be gained either through the door on the right side of the forecourt as you face 
the Guildhall, or through the sliding doors at the rear of the Guildhall. There is dedicated disabled 
parking space at the rear (access via Copenhagen Street). Most meetings are held on the ground floor, 
which can be reached by using a lift.  If you are a wheelchair user or have restricted mobility and you 
wish to attend a meeting, please telephone or email the officer mentioned below in advance and we 
will make any necessary arrangements to assist your visit.

Part I of the Agenda includes items for discussion in public.  You have the right to inspect copies of 
Minutes and reports on this part of the Agenda as well as background documents used in the 
preparation of these reports. Details of the background papers appear at the foot of each report. Part 
II of the Agenda (if applicable) deals with items of 'Exempt Information' for which it is anticipated that 
the public may be excluded from the meeting and neither reports nor background papers are open to 
public inspection.

Please note that this is a public meeting and members of the public and press are permitted to report 
on the proceedings. "Reporting" includes filming, photographing, making an audio recording and 
providing commentary on proceedings. Any communicative method can be used to report on the 
proceedings, including the internet, to publish, post or share the proceedings. Accordingly, the 
attendance of members of the public at this meeting may be recorded and broadcast. By choosing to 
attend this public meeting you are deemed to have given your consent to being filmed or recorded and 
for any footage to be broadcast or published.  

Please note the Council audio records and live streams many of its meetings. These recordings are 
published on the relevant meeting pages of the Council’s website. A notice to this effect will be posted 
in the meeting room. If a member of the public chooses to speak at a meeting of the City Council 
he/she will be deemed to have given their consent to being recorded and audio being published live to 
the Council’s website. The Chairman of the meeting, can at their discretion, terminate or suspend 
recording, if in their opinion, continuing to do so would prejudice the proceedings of the meeting or if 
they consider that continued recording might infringe the rights of any individual, or breach any 
statutory provision.

At the start of the meeting under the item 'Public Participation' up to fifteen minutes in total is allowed 
for members of the public to present a petition, ask a question or comment on any matter on the 
Agenda.  Participants need to indicate that they wish to speak by 4.30 p.m. on the last 
working day before the meeting by writing, telephoning or E-Mailing the officer mentioned 
below.

If you have any general enquires or queries about this Agenda or require any details of background 
papers, further documents or information, or to discuss arrangements for the taking of photographs, 
film, video or sound recording please contact the Lead Officer, Margaret Johnson, Democratic 
Services Administrator, Guildhall, Worcester WR1 2EY.  Telephone: 01905 722085 (direct 
line); E-Mail Address:  committeeadministration@worcester.gov.uk.

This agenda can be made available in large print, braille, on PC disk, tape or in a number of ethnic 
minority languages.  Please contact the above named officer for further information.

Agendas and minutes relating to all City Council Committees and Council Meetings are also available 
electronically, click on the option “Committee Minutes and Documents”, Website Address: 
worcester.gov.uk

mailto:committeeadministration@worcester.gov.uk


3

Environment Committee
Tuesday, 3 March 2020

Members of the Committee:-

Chairman: Councillor Joy Squires (L)
Vice-Chairman: Councillor Andy Stafford (C)

Councillor Mel Allcott (LD)
Councillor Mohammad Altaf (C)
Councillor Bill Amos (C)
Councillor Tracey Biggs (L)
Councillor Tom Collins (L)

Councillor Louise Griffiths (C)
Councillor Neil Laurenson (G)
Councillor Andrew Roberts (C)
Councillor Ceri Marie Stalker (L)
Councillor Richard Udall (L)

C= Conservative G = Green L = Labour LCo = Labour and Co-operative
LD = Liberal Democrat

AGENDA

Part 1
(ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION AND DECISION IN PUBLIC)

1. Appointment of Substitutes To receive details of any Members 
appointed to attend the meeting instead of 
a Member of the Committee.

2. Declarations of Interest To receive any declarations of interest.

3. Public Participation Up to a total of fifteen minutes can be 
allowed, each speaker being allocated a 
maximum of five minutes, for members of 
the public to present a petition, ask a 
question or comment on any matter on the 
Agenda or within the remit of the 
Committee.

4. Minutes Of the meeting held on 28th January 2020 
to be approved and signed.  (To follow)

5. Proposed Committee 
Performance Scorecard for 
2020/21 
Page(s): 1 - 8
Ward(s): All Wards
Contact Officer: Joanna Payne, 

Transformation 
and Performance 
Officer
Tel: 01905 
722407

That the Environment Committee consider 
the proposed content of the Environment 
Performance Scorecard for 2020/21.



4

6. Procurement & Introduction of In 
Cab Technology for Waste 
Collection Vehicles 
Page(s): 9 - 12
Ward(s): All Wards
Contact Officer: Kevin McFeeley, 

Environmental 
Operations 
Manager - 
Waste/Fleet
Tel: 01905 
722383

That the Committee recommends to 
Council a supplementary estimate to the 
capital programme of £26,087 to  facilitate 
the installation of ‘Jobtrak’ to complement 
the existing Dennis Connect system.

7. Memorial Policy for Parks and 
Other Public Open Spaces 
Page(s): 13 - 20
Ward(s): All Wards
Contact Officer: Sue Horrobin, 

Head of 
Environmental 
Operations
Tel: 01905 
722534

1. That the Committee agrees the 
following policy statement in relation 
to provision of memorials in parks 
and open spaces:

Wherever possible the Council will 
support applications and assist in the 
provision of sponsored Memorials in 
its parks and open spaces, subject to 
the agreed guidance and fees and 
charges (memorials include benches 
with plaques, trees and shrubs). 

Scattering of ashes in parks and 
open spaces is not deemed suitable 
as these are public areas provided 
for leisure and recreation purposes.

2. That any Sponsored memorial 
benches in Gheluvelt Park are 
exclusively for ex-service personnel 
as detailed in paragraph 3.4;

3. That the Committee notes that 
procedures for implementing the 
policy, including terms and 
conditions and fees and charges, will 
be reported to a later meeting of the 
Committee; and

4. That the agreed fees and charges for 
memorials offered by the 
Bereavement Service are adopted as 
an interim measure for 2020/21.



5

8. Any Other Business Which in the opinion of the Chairman is of 
sufficient urgency as to warrant 
consideration.



This page is intentionally left blank



Report to: Environment Committee, 3rd March 2020

Report of: Corporate Director - Place

Subject: PROPOSED COMMITTEE PERFORMANCE SCORECARD FOR 2020/21

1. Recommendation

1.1 That the Environment Committee consider the proposed content of the 
Environment Performance Scorecard for 2020/21.

2. Background

2.1 The City Council’s Performance Scorecards provide a one page overview of priority 
activities and Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) for each committee. These are 
supported by more detailed reports providing brief narrative updates for projects and 
activities and a visual representation of PIs in the form of run graphs or charts as 
applicable.  These are reported to Committees on a quarterly basis.

2.2 The content of the Performance Scorecards for Policy and Resources Committee has 
been reviewed by the senior management team and committee chair and vice chair 
as part of the Council’s service planning processes for 2020/21 to ensure that it 
remains relevant and continue to reflect ‘what matters most’ under the functions of 
the committee.

2.3 The current key projects and activities have been refreshed, taking account of the 
completion of current projects and the commencement of new activities.

2.4 Performance indicators (PIs) have been reviewed and alternative options proposed 
where these are deemed more appropriate measures of progress against the 
Council’s priorities.

2.5 Proposed targets have been developed based on a principle of performance 
improvement where this is realistic.

3. Main changes – Street Scene PIs

3.1 A suite of new PIs have been developed for monitoring Street Scene performance as 
part of proposed changes to how the service is delivered following recent trials of 
new ways of working.

3.2 There are currently no national PIs for Street Scene functions but for a number of 
years Worcester City Council has adapted and modified the former national 
indicators on litter and detritus, adding grass and hedge maintenance to form local 
indicators measuring the standard or quality of these key aspects of street scene. 

3.3 In addition, satisfaction with street scene services has been measured through the 
Annual Survey undertaken each autumn. 

Page 1 Agenda Item 5



3.4 The existing suite of Street Scene PIs reported to Environment Committee are:

a) % of areas assessed as having acceptable levels of detritus 
b) % of areas assessed as having acceptable levels of litter
c) % of areas assessed as having acceptable levels for grass cutting
d) % of areas assessed as having acceptable levels for hedge maintenance
e) Satisfaction with parks and open spaces
f) Satisfaction with keeping streets clean

3.5 Indicators a – d have been in place for some time. Surveys are carried out by 
volunteers across the ten neighbourhood zones each quarter. A sample of streets 
within each zone is visited and each category of street scene graded A (excellent 
standard) through to D (very poor standard). 

3.6 Whilst the surveys have provided useful feedback and helped target areas which 
have fallen below standard, it is recognised that the current definitions and collection 
methodologies may not be appropriate or consistently applied, raising concerns 
about the quality and reliability of the data. 

3.7 In addition, as part of the recent trials to test alternative ways of providing Street 
Scene services, a revised set of Service Standards has been developed and piloted. A 
new survey methodology is required which takes into account the new service 
standards delivered in the new way of working. These will include four Places (plus 
City Centre) alongside City Wide services rather than ten neighbourhood zones.

3.8 Service Standards aim to provide a clear and consistent understanding of what level 
of cleanliness and street scene appearance need to be achieved for Members, the 
public and staff. It is intended that these are used as a basis for measuring the 
standard of street scene services across the City in a more simple and consistent 
way. 

3.9 It is proposed to have three types of street scene indicator measuring:

 Quality of service (assessment against our street scene standards)
 Response (levels of demand and how it is met against agreed response times)
 Satisfaction (annual survey – resident perception)

Measuring Quality

3.10 It is proposed that a new set of survey PIs are developed using an improved 
collection methodology aligned to the new Street Scene Service Standards. 

3.11 There are four levels in the new service standards: Excellent, Acceptable, 
Unacceptable and Poor/Hazardous, describing the appearance and standard to be 
achieved.

3.12 It is proposed that the surveys continue to be completed by volunteers, but Officers 
will be working with the group of volunteers to ensure their input is used to inform 
the new indicators and methodology. 

3.13 In addition, we are considering whether a ‘quality assurance’ role could be 
undertaken by officers independent of the service to ensure the assessment 
methodology is being consistently applied.

Page 2



3.14 It is proposed that the existing methodology continues to be reported for Quarters 1 
& 2 of 2020/21, whilst a new methodology and set of indicators is developed. It is 
hoped that the new survey method PIs can start to be measured from Quarter 2 
2020/21 with full implementation from Quarter 3 in line with the introduction of 
proposed Place and City Wide working. 

3.15 More information will be available in the May report to this Committee which will 
outline full details of the trial outcomes and the proposed move to Place and City 
Wide working.

Measuring Response

3.16 A number of new PIs are proposed to measure our responsiveness to service 
enquiries. For example, this will measure the percentage of enquiries that are 
responded to within our (locally agreed) response times. Including these new 
indicators aims to provide a more rounded view of the service’s performance in 
relation to the needs of the City. 

3.17 Again, for Quarters 1 and 2 we will be measuring our response PIs against current 
service response times. These will be reviewed as part of the move to Place and City 
Wide working and revised response times will be proposed in the May report to this 
committee.

3.18 The functions included in the proposed suite of PIs (see Appendix 1) cover the main 
aspects of street scene: 

 Litter/detritus (sweeping) – high demand
 Fly-tipping – high demand  
 Animal fouling - low demand but high profile
 Grass maintenance - Seasonal and high profile
 Litter/dog bins – improvement/informing strategy

Measuring Satisfaction

3.19 Satisfaction PIs are collected through the Annual Survey. This provides an annual 
figure and trend which is reported to the Policy and Resources Committee as part of 
budget setting and to this Committee as part of the Quarter 3 performance report.

4. Information 

4.1 The proposed content of the Environment Committee Performance Scorecard for 
2020/21 is attached as Appendix 1.

Ward(s): All
Contact Officer: Jo Payne, Corporate Policy & Strategy Officer
 Tel: 01905 722407

Email: joanna.payne@worcester.gov.uk 
Background Papers: None

Page 3

mailto:joanna.payne@worcester.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Proposed Scorecard Content 2020/21 

 

Environment Committee  
Proposed Scorecard Content 2020/21   

 

Projects and Activities 

Environmental Sustainability Strategy 

Delivery of Task & Finish recommendations on Air Quality 

Development of Taxi Strategy for the city 

Bereavement Services Facilities Review 

Drinking water fountains within the City Centre 

Riverside Park improvements to maintain and enhance Green Flag 

Perdiswell landscaping Phase 2 – Perdiswell Park 

Street Scene Transformation (Clean Streets) 

Improve arterial routes 

New for 2020/21 

Develop an action plan to tackle Ash Dieback and increase trees across the City 

A programme of environmental and sustainability communications and campaigns to 
promote awareness 

Removed Reason for removal 

Riverside Park Project – achieving 
Green Flag status 

Completed. 

Car Park Management   Proposed removal if CICO in place by March 
2020 

Retention of Cinderella Ground As per Q2 performance report - as the 
project is substantially complete it is 
removed from the committee scorecard but 

remains a live project until the lease and fit 
out works have been completed. This is 

projected to be May 2020. 

Perdiswell landscaping Phase 1 – 
Ravensmeadow Golf Course 

Due to be completed by the end of 2019/20. 

Gateway and City/local enhancements To be removed for 2020/21 subject to the 

smaller piece of work to replace/improve 
gateway signs refurbished 

Domestic Recycling and Refuse 
Collection – Service Standards 

This is a significant piece of work looking at 
all public facing waste service standards and 

it is suggested that it is undertaken at a later 
date when in-cab data is available and we 

can consider how this fits with introduction 
of any future food waste collection service. 

Page 5 Agenda Item 5
Appendix 1



Proposed Scorecard Content 2020/21 

Key PIs 19/20 
Target 

20/21 
Target 

Target Rationale/Comments 

% of household waste recycled and composted  36% 37%  

Household waste recycled  31% 31%  

Household waste composted  5% 6%  

Residual household waste collected per 
household (kg) 

446 436  

Total amount of household waste collected per 

household (kg) 

692 694  

WRS - requests resolved to customers’ 
satisfaction  

Data only  

% of food premises with 3+ food hygiene rating Data only  

% of drivers licence renewal within 5 working 

days 

Data only  

Street Scene Service - % of areas with 
acceptable levels of detritus 

85% 85% Quarters 1 & 2 only whilst new indicators are developed 
for implementation in Q3 

Street Scene Service - % of areas with 

acceptable levels of litter 

85% 85% Quarters 1 & 2 only whilst new indicators are developed 

for implementation in Q3 

Street Scene Service - % of areas with 
acceptable levels of grass cutting 

85% 85% Quarters 1 & 2 only whilst new indicators are developed 
for implementation in Q3 

Street Scene Service - % of areas with 

acceptable levels of hedge maintenance 

85% 85% Quarters 1 & 2 only whilst new indicators are developed 

for implementation in Q3 

Annual Indicators    

Satisfaction with street cleansing Base line 
collection 

63% Maintenance targets based on results of 2019 Annual 
Survey. Satisfaction with rubbish collection and 

recycling 
84% 

Satisfaction with parks and play areas 79% 

New for 2020/21   Rationale / Comments 

Environmental Fixed Penalty Notices issued  50 Provides an indication of quality of City Centre 

P
age 6



Proposed Scorecard Content 2020/21 

Key PIs 19/20 
Target 

20/21 
Target 

Target Rationale/Comments 

monthly  environment – this is not a target, but more an 

indication of the average level of enforcement expected 
Number of FPNs issued per month for environmental 

enforcement 

% of incidents of street litter / detritus / 
weeds /animal fouling cleared within agreed 

response time 

 Base line 
collection 

To provide performance information about 
responsiveness to demand in high volume/ profile 

functions against agreed timescales.  
 
The PI commentary will provide information about the 

level of demand for context. 

% of incidents of poor grass maintenance 
cleared within agreed response time 

 Base line 
collection 

% of incidents of overflowing litter / dog waste 

bins dealt with within agreed response time 

 Base line 

collection 

% of incidents of fly-tipping cleared within 
agreed response time 

 Base line 
collection 

From Q3 onwards    

% of street assessed as Excellent or 

Acceptable 

 Base line 

collection 

To measure ‘Quality’ performance. Visual assessments 

will be used as previously but the methodology will be 
updated and the PI simplified to one combined Street 
Scene view. Assessment criteria will be based on 

refreshed Service Standards. 

Removed from Q3 onwards Reason for removal 

% missed bin collections reported by customers The percentage of missed bins remains low and relatively static. 

Street Scene Service - % of areas with 
acceptable levels of detritus 

Replaced by more appropriate measures as above. 

Street Scene Service - % of areas with 

acceptable levels of litter 

Street Scene Service - % of areas with 
acceptable levels of grass cutting 

Street Scene Service - % of areas with 

acceptable levels of hedge maintenance 

P
age 7



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Report to: Environment Committee, 3rd March 2020

Report of: Corporate Director - Place 

Subject: PROCUREMENT & INTRODUCTION OF IN CAB TECHNOLOGY FOR WASTE 
COLLECTION VEHICLES

1. Recommendation

1.1 That the Committee recommends to Council a supplementary estimate to the 
capital programme of £26,087 to  facilitate the installation of ‘Jobtrak’ to 
complement the existing Dennis Connect system. 

2. Background

2.1 Dennis Connect is a bespoke telematics package developed specifically for waste 
collection applications, enabling remote diagnosis of faults on waste collection vehicles. 
The system fitted to the chassis connects with components such as the engine, 
drivetrain and hydraulic and electrical systems to give holistic vehicle diagnostics. 
Following the successful deployment of a Dennis Connect in 2018, the waste service 
now has had an array of advanced telematics at its disposal with real-time tracking, 
enhanced aftermarket care and real-time alerts. 

2.2 The availably of real time data driven by this new technology has allowed the service to 
make maximum use of its resources and deliver route optimisation as required under 
the wider Environmental Operations Transformation project. The system allows ongoing 
review and management of routes, including commercial and garden rounds, to 
improve efficiency.

2.3 Following on from the installation of Dennis Connect that has proven its worth since its 
introduction, the next phase of improvements and transformation is possible through 
the implementation of a bolt on application (Jobtrak) to the Dennis Connect system. 
This tool will allow for real time data and service information to be passed between the 
back office and the front line service delivery crews. 

2.4 Jobtrak is an in cab tool Garmin tablet that is dash mounted and connected by a mobile 
sim card to facilitate the transmission and receipt of data. The power supply and 
mounting cradle is fitted to the vehicle and can be removed when a vehicle is de-
fleeted. The actual Garmin device is removed at the end of every shift. 

3. Preferred Option 

3.1 Following a visit to Wolverhampton Council, which has installed Jobtrak in-cab solution 
to its waste fleet, officers conducted a trial with a live system over a two week period 
in the summer of 2019. Since the trial was conducted, Gosport Council (operated by 
Urbaser ltd) and South Ayrshire have also deployed the system.

Page 9 Agenda Item 6



3.2 The Jobtrak application will appear within a tab on the same screen as Dennis Connect 
which is already used in day to day and strategic management of the waste service. 
Rounds are built and managed within the system and all accompanying data relating to 
individual properties are held in a database that is held on the same server as the 
current Dennis Connect system. Rounds are sent to each individual Garmin device and 
held in the cloud until called for by each driver (team leader) who logs in with their 
own user name and password.

3.3 There are a number of improvements that the system would bring, largely around the 
removal of paperwork and timeliness and accuracy of information that crews work 
from, bringing both Health and Safety and efficiency benefits:

 New properties and any changes made to properties are immediately available to 
front line service delivery crews.

 Information relating to individual properties with assisted collections, gate codes, 
bin locations and any other pertinent information is stored in the system and crews 
alerted as they make collections, with this information added to or removed in real 
time.

 The system would allow a move from paper based to electronic based vehicle 
checks. A vehicle can only take to the road if certified as roadworthy by the driver, 
a legally required check, as stipulated by the Vehicle and Operator Services Agency 
(VOSA), and has to be completed each day for each vehicle. The system will allow 
a vehicle failing its roadworthiness to be notified to the back office team in real 
time, allowing for immediate transfer of rounds between vehicles and details of 
vehicle faults. The system removes the need for paper based vehicle checks which 
rely on manual methods of passing information between the driver and back office. 

 The supervisor can monitor exact progress of rounds and make early interventions 
to address rounds that may be at risk of non-completion. From the back office 
using a “drag and drop” facility, the supervisor can move whole streets with all the 
accompanying data from one round to another.

 Any crew reports of contaminated bins, bins not out, excessive side waste, broken 
bins or bins swallowed by the vehicle can be accompanied by photos, these details 
are sent immediately to the back office system. This information can be sent to a 
customer by email immediately they make contact with the back office team or be 
used in conversation with a customer who calls a customer service agent.

 Individual route risk assessments are required for all waste routes and the system 
enables all relevant information to be stored and the crew/driver advised as the 
route is driven. It removes the need for paper based systems and folders of 
information which are impractical and in reality rarely referenced.  Once the round 
is downloaded to the in cab Garmin device, the crew will have access to detailed 
route risk assessments relating to their specific round, i.e. schools, bridges, 
pedestrian zones, areas where reversing is particularly hazardous, roads where 
double side activities are hazardous. Again, this removes the need for waste teams 
to rely on paper based risk assessments, improving transfer of key route 
information in a more efficient and accurate way to the driver and crew.

 The Team leader will open and close each street on their device as they enter and 
leave. This gives the back office instant visibility of round progress. 

Page 10



 The tool acts as a ‘sat-nav’ if a job is electronically passed to a crew who have no 
knowledge of the area of the city that they are being deployed to. This enables 
much improved deployment of support vehicles, for example when additional crews 
are needed to provide back up following a vehicle break down or road closure. It 
also means that temporary drivers and crews are provided with good quality, 
timely and accurate information about their route.

 Team leaders are alerted immediately to the addition of work to their round, the 
alert screen overrides all other screens.  Additional jobs have to be acknowledged, 
this gives the earliest opportunity to slot additional work into the daily schedule. 

3.4 Use of this technology rather than paper based systems improves efficiency in a 
number of ways. Use of the system and the data it would provide will also place the 
waste service in an advantageous position as we face potential service changes that 
may be brought by the National Resources and Waste Strategy published in December 
2018. In addition by getting it “right first time” we can reduce the number of 
unnecessary trips by refuse vehicles that emit high levels of C02 and use significant 
amounts of fuel.

4. Alternative Options Considered

4.1 The continuation of the paper based systems for route risk assessments, individual 
house exemptions, crew issue reporting could continue but it is recommended that 
technology is adopted to bring improvements and efficiencies as outlined in the report.

5. Implications

5.1 Financial and Budgetary Implications

This is a ‘bolt on’ to the already established Dennis Connect system, we are not 
procuring a system. There is no contract period and notification to cease using the 
software can be given at any time.

Purchase of the system requires capital expenditure of £22,825 and a yearly 
subscription of £3,262 for 15 vehicles (£217 per vehicle per year). This will require an 
amendment to the capital programme and is therefore subject to approval of Full 
Council. The amendment would be for 2020/21 and would be for the capital cost and 
first year’s subscription which can be capitalised as expenditure to support 
implementation: a total of £26,087. 

If the system is introduced, the cost of additional capital equipment will be built into 
vehicle costs for future procurement. The revenue costs of £3262 p.a. will need to be 
built into revenue budgets for future years.

5.2 Legal and Governance Implications

The most relevant legal issues discussed in this report are that of ensuring that 
vehicles operate in accordance with the legally required check as stipulated by the 
Vehicle and Operator Services Agency (VOSA) and that crews follow route risk 
assessments to ensure risks are removed, mitigated and managed when undertaking 
waste collection operations. The system assists with both of these in that information is 
recorded electronically, available instantly and additions and amendments are 
transferred more quickly and efficiently from the back office to the front line crews.

5.3 Risk Implications

Page 11



No risks identified, the system has been in place since 2018 with no IT failures 
recorded.

5.4 Corporate/Policy Implications

With the system in place and detailed data being received and stored electronically, the 
Council can begin analysing quality data and be in a better position to propose policy 
changes and corporate action to address areas of high contamination, bins not 
presented on a regular basis, missing bins and a potential program of rolling bin 
replacements.
 

5.5 Equality Implications

The system brings a significant benefit in dealing with those customers who require an 
assisted collection. Currently records are paper based and often rely on crews 
remembering locations. This fails when crews have to pick up work they do not 
regularly do – the system acts like a sat nav providing all the details accurately and in 
a more accessible format than referring to paper records for a crew whilst they are out 
and about delivering services.

5.6 Human Resources Implications

No implications identified, risk assessments and safe operating procedures will be 
reviewed to ensure safe use of the in cab device and roles/responsibilities of driver and 
crew are clarified.

5.7 Health and Safety Implications

The system brings improvements to the way that route risk assessments and vehicle 
checks are managed. A risk assessment and safe operating procedure will be generated 
detailing how and when the in cab tool can be used.  All team leaders will be trained on 
the use of the tool, a two week rolling program will be conducted by the waste 
supervisors who will deploy with the crews across 8 days.

5.8 Social, Environmental and Economic Implications

5.8.1 Social

Service to customers will be improved, particularly where there is an assisted collection 
or non standard collection method.

5.8.2 Environmental

Improvements to the efficiency of routes will be enabled, making fuel and carbon 
reduction possible.

5.8.3 Economic

No economic implications.

Ward(s): All Wards
Contact Officer: Kevin McFeeley, telephone 01905 
722383, kevin.mcfeeley@worcester.gov.uk

Background Papers: None 

Page 12

mailto:kevin.mcfeeley@worcester.gov.uk


Report to: Environment Committee, 3rd March 2020

Report of: Corporate Director - Place

Subject: MEMORIAL POLICY FOR PARKS AND OTHER PUBLIC OPEN SPACES

1. Recommendation

1.1 That the Committee agrees the following policy statement in relation to 
provision of memorials in parks and open spaces:

Wherever possible the Council will support applications and assist in the 
provision of sponsored Memorials in its parks and open spaces, subject to 
the agreed guidance and fees and charges (memorials include benches with 
plaques, trees and shrubs). 

Scattering of ashes in parks and open spaces is not deemed suitable as 
these are public areas provided for leisure and recreation purposes.

1.2 That any Sponsored memorial benches in Gheluvelt Park are exclusively for 
ex-service personnel as detailed in paragraph 3.4.

1.3 That the Committee notes that procedures for implementing the policy, 
including terms and conditions and fees and charges, will be reported to a 
later meeting of the Committee.

1.4 That the agreed fees and charges for memorials offered by the Bereavement 
Service are adopted as an interim measure for 2020/21.

2. Background

2.1 Historically, applications for installation of memorials and scattering ashes in Council 
owned public open space have been dealt with at a service level within 
Environmental Operations. Charges have been based largely on the agreed fees and 
charges levied for memorials in the bereavement service. However, there has been 
no agreed policy or procedure and a more structured and approved approach is 
needed to provide guidance, transparency and consistency in dealing with requests. 
This report sets out a recommended procedure for consideration. 

2.2 Whilst the Council supports provision of memorials in parks and other green spaces, 
it is recognised that these facilities have many uses, and are enjoyed by a wide 
range of people, primarily for leisure and recreation purposes. Therefore a key aim is 
to ensure that the provision of memorials is managed for the benefit of all.

Page 13 Agenda Item 7



2.3 The Council receives an estimated six to ten requests per annum for memorials to be 
located in parks and open spaces including the City Centre. Additionally, the Council 
sometimes receives requests for ashes to be scattered in parks and open spaces. 

2.4 To consider best practice and learn from others, feedback from other local 
authorities on their approach is detailed in Appendix 1. This benchmarking 
information has been used to develop the Worcester City policy, and will be used to 
develop procedures and guidance to ensure that our approach combines good 
practice with what works best for Worcester. 

2.5 The bereavement service offers a wide range of memorial options – full details of 
cemetery memorials can be found at:
https://www.worcester.gov.uk/bereavement/memorial-fees-charges

3. Preferred Option 

3.1 It is recommended that the Council supports provision of memorials in the form of 
benches with plaques, trees or shrubs in its parks and open spaces, aiming to ensure 
that memorials fit with the environment where they are located. Wherever possible 
memorial benches will have a common appearance, style and size so as not to spoil 
the amenity value for users of parks and open spaces. Wording on bench plaques 
and the types of benches will be agreed with the City Council and examples of the 
types of benches and plaques will be provided as part of the application process. 

3.2 Plaques are available with a new or refurbished sponsored memorial bench. 
However, lone standing plaques – such as those that may be placed next to a tree or 
shrub - are not supported as these are not considered suitable for areas which are 
predominantly provided for leisure and recreation purposes.

3.3 A sponsorship approach based on a simple one off payment rather than lease 
arrangements is recommended. This is felt to be more suitable for parks and open 
spaces which are provided and managed primarily as leisure and recreation facilities.  
However, further work will be done to ensure that the approach, including fees and 
charges and terms and conditions, are compatible with those in the bereavement 
service so that there is consistency of approach across Council services. An 
additional report will be brought back to the Committee with further detail on these 
matters.

3.4 Proposed permitted memorials will include the following:

 New bench and plaque 
 Refurbished bench and plaque
 Memorial tree 
 Memorial shrub 

3.5 Sponsored Memorial benches located in Gheluvelt Park are linked to ex-service 
personnel, and it is recommended that this approach continues. This dates back to 
1922 when Gheluvelt park was re-named as a commemoration of the Battle of 
Gheluvelt.  Fought in Belgium on 31 October 1914, the battle saw the Worcestershire 
Regiment act with great courage to win a significant victory.  The historic importance 
of Worcester’s Gheluvelt Park has been recognised with listed status.  Historic 
England, (formerly English Heritage) has given Grade II Listed status to buildings 

Page 14

https://www.worcester.gov.uk/bereavement/memorial-fees-charges


and structures in the park and has also placed the park itself on the official register 
of Historic Parks and Gardens.  

3.6 Occasionally the City Council arranges memorial benches directly, in memory of 
councillors or members of staff and these will be dealt with in the same way as 
requests from members of the public and will be subject to the same guidelines and 
approach.

3.7 Memorials should not detract from the prime recreational purpose of the facility.  
Therefore, the size and location of the park or green space may limit the number of 
plaques or benches permitted, along with the type of bench, tree or shrub provided. 
The Council will reserve the right to refuse applications on this basis but will work 
with the applicant to find a solution to meet their request wherever possible. Officers 
will carry out further work on the detail of how this will be implemented and this will 
be clarified in procedures and terms and conditions to be brought back to a later 
meeting of the Committee.

3.8 It is proposed that memorials for pets will be dealt with in the same way. However 
burials of pets in parks and open spaces or scattering of ashes is not permitted.

3.9 Any un-authorised memorials on public verges, parks or open spaces will be 
removed appropriately on a case by case basis. Officers will take into account the 
circumstances, length of time the memorial has been in place and so on. Wherever 
possible officers will liaise with partner organisations as they are often in contact 
with families to agree suitable arrangements. Where a memorial is removed and we 
are unable to make contact with the family we will store items for a month should 
anyone wish to make arrangements for them to be collected.

3.10 As outlined above, further work is being done to produce guidelines, terms and 
conditions and fees and charges for implementing the policy. These will include 
clarification on how to apply, types of memorial available, ownership of memorials, 
what happens if they become damaged, length of time the Council will maintain a 
memorial etc. A report will be brought back to Committee during 2020/21 with this 
detail once the overarching policy has been agreed.

4. Alternative Options Considered

4.1 An alternative option is that the Council does not allow memorials to be located in its 
parks and open spaces, as indicated through benchmarking (Appendix 1) this 
position is adopted in some councils.

4.2 However, this approach is not recommended as the Council recognises the 
importance of memorials and there are already a number of established memorials in 
the City Council’s parks and open spaces. 

5. Implications

5.1 Financial and Budgetary Implications

There are no direct financial implications arising from this report. Whilst further work 
is done on fees and charges, any requests will continue to be dealt with using the 
agreed fees and charges used in the bereavement service in line with existing 
arrangements and budgets.

Page 15



In developing terms and conditions and proposals for fees and charges, officers will 
consider the costs of purchase, installation, maintenance and potential replacement. 
Agreement on these will be subject to a further report to the Committee and through 
the normal budget process.

5.2 Legal and Governance Implications

There is no legal duty to provide the option of memorials in parks and open spaces. 
This report sets out a policy statement and will be supported by a procedure, terms 
and conditions and fees and charges to ensure that requests are dealt with 
consistently and transparently.

5.3 Risk Implications

There are no risk implications arising from this report.

5.4 Corporate/Policy Implications

The report asks the Committee to adopt a local policy position in relation to the 
provision of memorials and scattering of ashes in the City Council’s parks and open 
spaces.

5.5 Equality Implications

There are no equality implications arising from this report.

5.6 Human Resources Implications

There are no human resources implications arising from this report.

5.7 Health and Safety Implications

There are no health & safety implications arising from this report.

5.8 Social, Environmental and Economic Implications

Social

The approach proposed in this report supports people who wish to locate memorials 
in parks and open spaces.

Environmental 

Planting of trees and shrubs brings positive environmental benefits.

Economic Implications

There are no economic implications arising from this report.

Ward(s): All Wards

Page 16



Contact Officer: Sue Horrobin, telephone 01905 722534, 
sue.horrobin@worcester.gov.uk

Background Papers: None 
Appendix 1: Benchmarking Information

Page 17

mailto:sue.horrobin@worcester.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Benchmarking Information

Examples of councils providing sponsored memorial benches, trees or shrubs in their parks 
and open spaces include Birmingham City Council, Bedford Borough Council, Rochford 
District Council and St Albans City & District Council

Cheltenham Borough Council allow Benches or Trees through “Seat Sponsorship” or “Tree 
Sponsorship” Schemes whereby small donations are made but no plaques with inscriptions.

Most councils specify the bench type so as to ensure it is suitable for the location.

Redditch Borough Council allows memorials, benches or plaques in the crematorium 
grounds and cemetery areas only, not in parks or open space.

Perth & Kinross Council allows no more than 50% of the total benches in any area to be 
offered as Memorial Benches.

Leasing periods vary, Rochford District Council offer a maintenance lease over 5 years, 
Perth & Kinross Council use an expected life of the bench to be 15 years and Bedford 
Borough Council use 15 years also.

In relation to trees, many councils offer them as Memorials, but most do not offer plaques 
due to the risk of damage.

Councils vary in relation to the number of years they will give a tree to thrive before 
replacing it at their own cost.  Some will not replace any tree, regardless of age, others, 
such as Birmingham City Council and Rochford District Council will replace up to 1 year, 
whereas Bristol City Council and Bedford Borough Council will replace up to 2 years.

Bench costs and arrangements vary by Council;

 Birmingham City Council charge £750 - £1500 for a bench, no replacement for 
damaged benches and no indication of whether maintenance is included or not.

 Bedford Borough Council charge £1600 for a new bench and plaque and include 
maintenance in this cost. 

 St Albans City & District Council asks for donations for benches which are exempt 
from VAT, costs are based on a standardised style of bench, include plaque and 
installation in the region of £1300 but there is currently a waiting list for 
memorial bench donations in parks.  

 Perth and Kinross Council expect minimal maintenance – cleansing or very minor 
repairs only, purchase if for the life of the bench, expected to be 15 years

 Kettering Borough Council no longer supply any benches
 Rochford District Council supply 4 different benches ranging from £440 to £1750

Sponsorship amounts for trees also varies;  Councils that offer no guarantee of success or 
any replacement tree if the tree fails for whatever reason include Cheltenham Borough 
Council with a donation cost of £200 

Bristol City Council charge £295 for the supply, planting and watering of the tree for up to 
2 years to ensure it is established.  

Page 19 Agenda Item 7
Appendix 1



Bedford Borough Council supply a tree 3 to 4 metres tall at a cost of £400 including tree 
guard, planting, staking and tying, plus 1st seasons watering.  Rochford District Council also 
replaces a tree within the first year and their cost is around £185.00.  

St Albans City and District Council will charge for the tree depending on the species, 
between £150 to £250 and replaces any trees at their own cost. 

Page 20


	Agenda
	5 Proposed Committee Performance Scorecard for 2020/21
	Appendix 1

	6 Procurement & Introduction of In Cab Technology for Waste Collection Vehicles
	7 Memorial Policy for Parks and Other Public Open Spaces
	Appendix 1


